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Financial Report 30 June 2017

| am pleased to present Allegra Orthopaedics Limited's (‘Allegra’) Annual Report for the year ended 30
June 2017.

FY2017 has been a significant year of achievements at Allegra as the company successfully continues to
execute on its strategic plan. These achievements include:

o Improved NPAT profit of $501k, which is a 52.537M improvement on our FY2016 result and the
most significant profit achieved by the company since listing on the ASX.

* Reduced the company’s loans balances to $150k at 30 June 2017 compared to FY2016 where we
had 51.078M of loans

s Improved cash balances at 30 June 2017 with cash & cash equivalents of $1.848M compared to
51.155M at 30 June 2016

¢ Continued expansion of our customer surgeon base which will pave the way to improved revenues.

* Significant progress of our Sr-HT Garhnite Bone Substitute project, with positive results from the 12
month histology testing and clinical sheep study. Allegra’s Innovation Division is now setting up a
pilot manufacturing facility in Lane Cove as part of this comme rcialisation project

* Continued to maintain strong shareholder support as indicated by the substantially oversubscribed
shareholder rights issue in April 2017 raising 51,219,023 in new capital for the company. (refer ASX
announcement on 12 April 2017)

Allegra's Orthopaedic Division continues to perform well with new products continually being evaluated to
bring to market. QOur goal is to ensure Allegra is delivering products and services which our customers want.
We intend to stay ahead of the curve in terms of orthopaedics products offered.

With regard to our Innovation Division, engagement and collaboration with surgeons, universities and
companies are key goals. We aim to deliver a positive impact to the market with our 5r-HT-Gahnite Bone
Substitute technology commencing with our spinal custom cage. Qur recent collaboration with Bone,
Ligament, Tendon Pty Ltd (BLT) will add yet another dimension to this division

Lastly, | would like to thank my fellow directors, Allegra management and staff for the significant
turnaround in Allegra’s performance over the last 12 months.

Sincerely

Llsss, —~

Peter Kazacos
Mon-Executive Chairman

Allegra Orthopaedics Limited
Level 8, 168-20 Orion Road Lane Cove NGW 2006 Australia; PO Box 72 5t Leonards NSW 2065 Australia

T +6129119 5200 T Toll Free 1800 644 370

F +612 9439 4441 F Toll Free 1800 624 223
E salesfallegraorthopaedics.com W www.allegraorthopaedics.com
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The annual general meeting of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited is to be held at:
Leval 8

18-20 Orion Road

Lane Cove West, NSW 2066

on Wednesday 25 October 2017 at 10:00 am (AEST)

Leval 8

18-20 Orion Road

Lane Cove Wast, NSW 2066

Head office telaphone: 02 9119 9200

Link Market Services Limited

Leval 12

BBD George Street

Sydnay, NSW 2000

Shareholders enquiries: 1300 554 474

Crowe Horwath Sydney
Level 15

1 O'Connell Street
Sydney, NSW 2000

Commaonwealth Bank of Australia
PO Box 327
Sivarwater, NSW 2128

Allegra Orthopaadics Limited shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
[ASX coda: AMT)

www.allegraorihopaedics.com

The Corporate Governance Statement which was approved at the same time as the
Annual Report can be found al hilp:/iwww. allegraorthopaedics. comicorporate-
govarnance
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the consclidated entity (referred to hereafter as
the 'consolidated entity’) consisting of Allsgra Orthopaadics Limited (referred to hereafter as the 'company’ or 'parant
entity’) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2017.

Directors

The following persons were directors of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the
date of this report, unless otherwise stated:

Peter Kazacos
Anthony Hartnall
Sean Mulheam

Principal activities

During the financial year the principal continuing activiies of the consolidated endity consisted of the sale, design and
distribution of surgical implants and the exclusive global licence to commaerclalise a load bearing blocompatible ceramic
material.

Dividands
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.

Review of oparations
The profit for the consolidated entity after providing for income tax amounted to $501,048 (30 June 2016: loss of
$2,035,788).

Tolal revenue from ordinary activitles for the year ended 30 June 2017 was 54,943,216 (30 June 2018: §5,018,5586),

Sale of goods for the year ended 30 June 2017 was $4,262 476 (30 June 2016: 54,343 656). Due to various cost savings
measures, including outsourcing manufacturing and relocating to new premises, there was an improvement in gross
margin to 68% for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: 595%).

Revenue eamed from commission sales for the year ended 30 June 2017 was $672,698 (30 June 2016: $653,545). This
represents a 3% increase.

EBITDA is a financial measure which is not prescribed by Australian Accounting Standards ("AAS") and represents the
prafit under AAS adjusted for non-specific and significant items. The directors consider EBITDA to raflact tha core earmings
of the consolidated entity.

The following table summarises key reconciling items between statutory profit(loss) after tax attibutable to the
shareholders of the company and EBITDA.

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Profit/{loss) after income tax 501,048  (2.035,788)
Add: Depraciation and amortisation 200,667 514,780
Add: Finance cost 111,282 68,269
Less: Interest incoma (8,042) (21,355)
EBITDA BO4.965  (1,474,094)

Included within the profit{loss) after income tax figure above for 30 Juna 2016 are $810,992 of one off restructuring costs,

Cost of sales and purchases of consumables have dacreased by $493,767 to §1,567 896, This decreasa is attributabla to
the reduction of salary and rent costs due to the decision taken to outsource the manufacturing division during the last
financial year.

Allegral+|

OATHOPAID|CS f"f“‘\-.

arrr vy " el l‘_\_'_ll



Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

Corporate and administration expenses decreased by $1,094,364 to 51,737,046, Aside from the $810,992 one off
restructuning costs incurred during the year ended 30 June 2016, corporate and administration expenses decreased by
$283,372. This reduction is mainly attributable to savings of $71,857 in audit and tax fees, $78,638 in insurance costs and
$67,520 in legal fees. There was also a reduction in the depreciation charge for the year.

Quality and research and development axpenses were down $444 835 to $898 298, This decrease is aftributable to a
reduction in the quality and research staff as a result of the decision fo outsource manufacturing. The primary expenditure
relates to the commercialisation of the S=HT Gahnite bone substitute project.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by $518,918 to $1,206,500. The decrease is attributable to lower travels costs,
consultants and sales agent feas. As announced to the ASX on 20 Apnrl 2016, the National Sales Manager took up the role
of CEQ, The national sales manager position was not replaced bud rather merged into the CEO role. This resulted in salary
cost savings within this division.

On 13 December 2016, the company announced that it had issued 8 438,957 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of
$0.08 per share. The $755,117 raised was usad to repay a loan of $700,000 owing to Robinwood Investments Pty Ltd
{related party) which had been drawn down prior to 30 June 2016 {refer ASX announcement dated 30 June 2016).

On 13 April 2017, the company issued 9,388,269 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.125 per share. A further
363,912 fully paid ordinary shares allocated to parties related to directors will be issued subject to shareholder approval.
The $1,219,023 raised will be used to continue funding the SR-HT-Gahnite bone substitute project and increase its
investment in surgical instrumentation and inventory.

Finance costs increased by 543,023 to $111,292. The increasa is attributable to interest and loan astablishment fees paid
for the related party loan to Robinwood Investments Ply Limited.

Met profit after tax was $501,048 {2016; loss of $2,035,788) which includes the Restructurng Cost of $MNil (2016: $810,992)
related to the decision to outsource manufacturing.

Cash position
The cash balance as at 30 June 2017 was 51,847 647 which is an increase of 3693,057 when compared with the cash
balance as at 30 June 2016 of $1,154,590,

Outiook

The consolidated entity will be focusing on two major objectives. The first being the improvement of sales and distribution
of its medical device product range. This should be achieved by continuing to seek innovative revenue channels and
products coupled with ongoing development of its highly trained and skilled medical device workforce, The sacond
objective being pursued is the ongoing product development of the exciting SrHT Gahnite Bone Substitute project.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

On 13 December 2016, the company announced that it had issued 9,438,957 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of
50,08 per share pursuanl to shareholder approval given at the company's Annual General Meeling held on November 30
2017. The §755,117 raised was used to repay the loan for $700,000 drawn down prior to 30 June 2016, with Robinwood
Investments Pty Limited (refer ASX announcement dated 30 June 2016).

On 12 April 2017, the company announced that it would issue 3,752,181 fully paid ordinary shares af an Issue price of
$0.125 per share. Tha $1,2189,023 raised is baing usad to (1) continue funding the Sr-HT-Gahnite bone substitute project
and (2) increase the company's investment in surgical instrumentation and inventory to support the company’'s expanding
sUrgeon numbers base.

Thera ware no ather significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the fimancial year.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

Mo matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2017 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
consolidated entity’s operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future
financial years.

Likely developments and expected results of operations
The consolidated entity will continue to execute on Its two major objectives as slated in the December 2016 half-year
Financial Report.
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

The first objective being the improvement of sales and distribution of its medical device product range contained within
company's Orthopaedic Division. This objective is expected to be achieved through the combination of distribution
channels, expanslon of the company's highly skilled medical represantatives, and the recent acquisition of additional Active
Knee instrumentation fo support the company's expanding surgeon base. This division is expected to continue trading
profitably for FY2018.

The second objeciive, relates to company's Innovation Division where the company continues with the on-going product
development and investment in its Sr-HT-Gahnite bone substilute project (refer recent ASX announcement on 10th
February 2017). This project continues to show impressive results and is gaining awareness and great interest from
significant organization both from within Australia and intemationally. The Sr=HT-Gahnite bone substitute s pre revenus
with all cosls related to development being expensed, Therefore in FY2018, the Innovation division is expected to operate
at a loss. It is important to note that in previous years including FY2017, the Innovation Division recognised N3W
Governmant grant funding as revenua. This grant funding has now bean ulilised so no further revenue will be recognisad in
FY.2018.

The consolidation of the company’s two operating divisions Is expected to be a trading loss for FY2018 due to the on-going
investment in the Innovation Division expected to exceed the continuing profils resulfing from the Orthopaedics Division.

Environmental regulation
The consolidated entity is not subject to any significant envirenmental regulation under Australian Commornwealth or State
law.

Information on directors

Name: Pater Kazacos

Tita: Mon=Executive Director and Chairman

CQualifications: B.E, B.5c.

Experience and experiise: Feter has over 40 yvears’ experience in the IT industry. He founded KAZ in 1988,

guided it from a small IT sarvices company in NSW to one of Asia Pacific's leading IT
services and business process oulsourcing service providers with owver 4,000
employvees, as a fully cowned subsidiary of Telstra. He also founded Anittel Ltd,
building it into one of Australia's lesading IT&C service providers operating outside the
major mefropolitan areas, leading to its acquisition in 2010 by Anittel Group Limited
{since renamed Aoxis Technology Group Lid.), representing a major strategic
milestone in the transformation and convergence of the IT&T industry. Pror to
founding KAZ and Anittel, Peter held a number of senior technical positions in the
Australian IT industry with leading Australian crganisations. Peter was the recipient of
the inaugural Australian Enirepreneur of the Year 20071 award in the Technology,
Communications, E-Commarce and Biotechnology category.

Other current directorships: Mone

Formaear directorships (last 3 yearsy: None

Speclal responsibilities: Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committea and member of the Audit
and Risk Committes

Interests in shares: 1.184 430 ordinary shares

Interests in oplions: Mone

Nama: Anthony Harinall

Title: Mon-Executive Director

CGualifications: BEc LLE {Hons) (ANU), LLM (Highest Hons) (Gearge Washington University)

Experience and experdise: Anthony who has been honoured as an Officer in the Order of Australia has had a

distinguished legal career in both government and private practice. He is the founding
partner of Atanaskovic Hartnell, a legal firm specialising in corporate and commercial
law, paricularly covering corporate financing, takeovers and regulalory issues. He
was the inaugural Chairman of the Australian Securities Commission. He has chaired
a number of ASX-listed companies.

Other current directorships: None

Former directorships (last 3 years): None

Special responsibilities: Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and member of the Nomination and
REemuneration Commities

Interests in shares: 36,307,911 ordinary shares

Interesis in options: Mone
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

Name: Sean Mulhsam

Title: Mon-Execufive Direclor

Qualifications: BEc (University of Sydney)

Experience and expertise: Sean has been involved in the financial markets for over 30 years' with experienca in

Asia, Europe and the Americas. Sean has particular experiize in rigk management
He founded Jacaranda Capital Partners, a boutique advisory and markals training
business with offices in Singapore and Australia.

Other currant directorships: Non-Execulive Director of Greka Drilling Limitad.

Former directorships (last 3 years): Mone

Special responsibiliies: Member of the Audit and Risk Commities and member of the Momination and
Remuneration Committes.

Interasts in shares: B73 ordinary shares

Interasts in options: None

"Other current directorships' quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships in all
olher types of entities, unless otherwise slated.

Former directorships (in the last 3 years)' quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed antities only and
excludes directorships in all other types of enfities, unless otherwise stated.

Company secrefaries

Justyn Stedwell is a professional Company Secretary consultant, with over 10 years' exparience as a Company Secretary
of ASX-listed companies in various Industries including blotechnology, agriculiure, mining and exploration, information
technology and telecommunications. Justyn's qualifications include a Bachelor of Commerce (Economics and
Management) from Monash University, a Graduate Diploma of Accounting at Deakin University and a Graduate Diploma in
Applied Corporate Governance at the Govermnance Institute of Australia. He is currently the Company Secretary of sevaral
ASX listed companies.

Richard Ulrick (BA, LLB, Dip Fin Mgt, FGIA, CPA) was engaged by way of a services agreement between the company
and Company Secretarial & Legal Services Pty Lid which he established. Richard is a solicitor of the Supreme Couri of
NSW and has more than 30 years' experiance in company sacrelarial and general counsel roles.

Richard resigned as company secratary on 18 January 2017 and Justyn was appointed on the same date.
Meetings of directors

The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors (‘the Board') and of each Board committes hald during the
vear ended 30 June 2017, and the number of meelings attended by each director were:

Momination and
Full Board Femuneration Commities Audit and Rizk Committes
Attended Hald Attended Held Attendad Heald
Pater Kazacos 11 11 3 3 2 2
Anthony Hartnell 8 11 3 3 2 2
Sean Mulhearn 11 11 3 3 2 2

Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the relevant
commities.

Remunaration report (audited)

The remuneration report, which has been audited, oullines the director and other key management personnal ('KMP)
arrangements for the consolidated entity, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its
Regulations.

KEMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the enfity,
diractly or indirectly, inciuding all directors.

Allegral «
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
Details of remuneration

Servica agresments

Share-based compensation

Additional information

Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel

& @ & & & @

Principles used fo detormine the nature and amount of remunaralion

Az a medical device sales, design and distribution business competing against global multi-nationals, the consolidated
anlity requires a board and senior managament team that have both the technical capability and relevant axperence to
execute the consolidated entity's business plan.

The consolidated entity’s KMP remuneration framework develops as economic conditions and tha financial pedformance of
the consolidated entity permits. The cbjective continues fo be to ensure reward for performance is compelitive and
appropriate for the rasults deliverad.

The remuneration structures explained below are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, retain key employees,
reward the achievement of strategic objectives, and achieve the broader outcome of creation of value for shareholders,

The remuneration structures take into account:

¢ [Key criteria for good reward govemnance practices, namely: competitiveness and reasonableness, alignment fo
shareholders’ interests, alignment of KMP remuneration with perfformance, transparency and capital managament;

s  The capabllity and experience of the KMP;

#  The ability of KMF to conirol performance; and

s The consolidated antity’s earnings and company share price performanca,

Remumnerstion cormmmiifooe

The Momination and Remuneration Committes ('NRC') is responsible for ensurng that there is gender party in the
remuneration levels of employees and believes this to be the case.

The remuneration structures are intended fo motivate employees for quality short and long term performance. The mix
betwaen short term and long term variable componerts is to maintain a focus on the sustainable short term performance of
the consclidated entity, whilst ensuring its positioning for its longer term success.

Remuneration structure
The structure of non-executive directors and executive remunerations are determined separaialy.

Mon-axecutive dinectors’ remuneration

The aggregate remuneration that may be paid to non-executive directors is 8 maximum of $500,000 per annum. This
remunaration may be divided among the non-executive directors in such a manner as the Board may detarmine. The
maximum may not be increased without prior approval from sharsholders at @ general meeting. Direclors will seek
approval from fime to ime as deemed appropriate.

Fees and paymeniz fo non-executive direciors are intended to reflect the demands which are made on, and the
responsibiliies of, the directors,

Executive remunaration
The consolidated entity aims to reward KMP with a level and mix of remuneration based on their position and
responsibility, which is both fixed and varable.

The KMP remuneration and reward framework has four components:

# Basze pay and non-monetary benefits;

» Short-larm performance incentives;

® Share-based payments; and

= Diher remuneration such as superannuation and long service leave,

The combination of these comprizes the KMP's total ramuneration.
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration consists of base remuneration (which is calculated on a total cosl basis including Government
Statutory employer confributions to superannuation funds, except for the Chief Executive Officer ('CEQ') whose base
remuneration axcludes superannuation). This base remuneration is structured to be reasonable and fair relative to tha
scale of the consolidated enfity's business., It assumes the fulfilment of core parformance requirements and expectations.

Remuneration levals are reviewed annually by the NRC through a process that considers individual and overall
performance of the consolidated entity. In addition, regard is had to information from publicly available extemal
ramunaration sources to ensure senior KMP remuneration is compatitive in the market place having regard to the size of
the consolidated enlity and the fiscal constraints of a growing company.

Consolidated entity performance and link to remuneration

Performance finked remuneration is designed to reward KMP for meeting or exceeding their financial and personal
objectives. Refer to the "Addificnal information’ section of the remuneration report for detalls of the earnings and total
shareholders return, from 1 July 2013,

Shortterm incentive ("STI)

At this stage in the consolidated entity’s development, shareholder wealth is enhanced by the achievement of objectives in
the development of the consolidated entity’s products, within a framework of prudent financial management and consistant
with the consolidated entity’s annual business plan.

If the consolidated antily axceeds a pre-determined Met Profit After Tax (NPAT') performance hurdle set by the NRC, a
short-term incentive ('STI') pool also set by the NRC is available to KMP during the annual review. This parformance hurdle
ensures variable reward is only available when value has been created for shareholders and when earnings are consistent
with the business plan,

The CEQ has a target ST] opportunity depending on the accountabilities of tha role and impact on the consolidated entity's
performance. The maximum target bonus opportunity approximates 20% of total remuneration.

The NRC determines whether objectives have besn met. The STI bonus payments may be adjusted up or down in line with
under or over achievement against the performance hurdles levels. This is at the discretion of the NRC.

Long<erm incentives ("LTT)
The long-term incentive = intended to be provided to KMP, other than non-executive directors, ordinary shares or options

over ardinary shares in the company so to align KMP interests with shareholders’ interests,

The ability to obtain the ordinary shares or oplions over ordinary shares will generally ba conditional on the individual
achieving certain performance hurdles, such as service conditions and the achievement of key performance indicators
("KPIs"). However, ordinary shares or oplions over ordinary shares may be granted on whatever terms are required and
appropriate to secure the services of KMP, Tha NRC is required to approve the number of ordinary shares or options over
ordinary shares that ultimately vest,

There were no outstanding share plans,
The basis of a long-term incentives plan s currently under review.

The consolidated entity’s Securities Dealing Policy prohibits transactions in assoclated products which limit the risk of
participating in unvested entitements under any equity based remuneration schemes.

Use of remuneration conswitants

During the financial year ended 30 June 2017, the consolidated entity engaged Godfrey Remuneration Group, to provide
draft structure of the ESOP which has yet to be considerad/approved by the Board. Godfrey Remuneration Group was paid
$8,000 for these services.

An agreed set of protocols ware pul in place to ensure that the remuneration recommendations would be free from undue
influence from key management personnel. The Beard i satished that the protocols were followed and as such there was
no udue influence.
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

Voting and comments made at the company's 2016 Annual General Meating FAG M)

Af tha 2016 AGM less than 0.05% of the voles received were against the adoption of the remuneration report for the year
ended 30 June 2016. The company did nol recelve any specific feedback al the AGM regarding ils remuneration practices.
Details of remunaration

Amounts of remuneration

The KMP of the consolidated entity consisted of the directors of the Company and the following persons:

s Jenny Swain - Chief Executive Officer
» Richard Ulrick - Company Secretary (resigned on 18 January 2017)

Details of the remuneration of the directors and other KMP of the Company ara set out in the following tables.

Post- Share-
employment Long-term based
Shori-term benefits benefits benefits  payments
Equity-
Cash salary Mon- Super- Leave settied
and feas Bonus monetary  annuation benefits shares Total
2017 E $ $ 5 ¥ ¥ b
Mon-Executive Directors:
Peter Kazacos (Chairman) 62,520 - - - - - 62,520
Anthony Hartnall 20,000 - - - - - 20,000
Sean Mulheam 20,000 - - - - - 20,000
Other Key Managamant
Personnal:
Jenny Swain ** 210,843 - 30,812 23,081 3,869 - 268,605
Richard Ulrick * 35,838 - - - - - 35,838
349.2”1 o aﬂ.aiz 23|m1 ELEEH = M|%3
= Includes remuneration from beginning of the year to date of cessation as KMP within the consolidated entity.
™ No bonus was paid during the year.
Fost- =hare-
employment Long-term based
Shori-term beneafits benafits benefits  payments
Equity-
Cash salary Man- Super- Leave saltied
and feas Bonus monetary  annuation  benefits shares Total
2016 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
MNon-Executive Directors:
Peter Kazacos (Chalrman) 62,520 - - - - - 62,520
ﬁnﬂw H-Hl'tl'lﬂ‘" 20|m L hat - - = 20|'m
Sean Mulheam * 13,333 - - - - - 13,333
Executive Directors:
Peter Waelsh ** 6,500 - - - - - 6,500
Other Key Managemant
Personnel:
Richard Ulrick 52,800 - - - - - 52,800
Jenny Swain * 29,071 10,000 6,544 3,383 B40 - 49 647
Chris Calamos ** 117,654 - - 11,1977 - - 128,831
Tom Milicevic *** 118,355 - - 11,908 - - 130,263
420,233 10,000 6,544 26,468 B40 - 463,894
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

*  Includes remuneration from date of appointment as KMP within the consolidated entity. Jenny Swain bonus was
discretionary.

= Includes remuneration from appointment as KMP to cessation as KMP within consolidated entity.

*  Includes remuneration from beginning of the year to date of cessalion as KMP within the consolidated entity.

The proportion of remuneration linked to parfformancea and the fixed proporiion are as follows:

Fixed

ramuneration Atrsk-STI  Atrsk- LTI
MName 2017 2017 2017
Non-Executive Directors:
Peter Kazacos 100% - -
Anthony Hartnell 100% p p
Sean Mulheam 100% - -
Cther Key Managemant Personnel:
Jenny Swain 100% - -
Richard Ulrick 100% - -

Service agreaments

On appointment to the Board, all non-executive directors enter into a service agreamant with the company in the form of &
letter of appointment. The letter summarizes the Board policies and terms, including remuneration, relevant to the office of
director,

Remuneration and other terms of employment for KMP (other than directors and company secrefary) are formalised in
service agreaments. Details of these agreements are as follows:

MName: Janny Swain

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Agresment commenced: 2 May 2016

Details; The contract of employment as CEO provides for a base salary al the rale of

$230,000 per annum (plus superannuation). The base salary is subject to annual
review as al 30 June each year with the firsl review baing on 30 Juna 2017. An
annual performance bonus may be payable upon the achievement of relevant KPls.
For the 12 months period to 30 June 2017 the bonus amounts o a maximem
$60,000. The manner of payment of bonuses to exacutives in the form of long term
incentives related to long-term performance is under review and Jenny will be
polentially aligible to the axtant that they bacomea payabla. Either party may tarminata
the agreement on the giving of 3 months’ notice.

KMP have no entittement to tarmination paymenis in the event of removal for misconduct,
Share-based compensation

Issue of shares
Thera wera no sharas issued o direclors and other KMP as part of compensation during the year ended 30 Juna 2017,

Options
Thera were no oplions over ordinary shares issued to directors and other KMP as part of compensation that were

outstanding as at 30 June 2017.

Thera were no oplions over ordinary shares granted to or vested in directors and other KMP as part of compensation
during tha year endad 30 June 2017.

Additional informaition
The Board considers that the above performance-linked remuneration struclures will generate the desired outcome based
on the experience of other companies. STI's are determined by NFAT, which was not met this year.
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

The aarmings of the consolidated entity for the five years to 30 June 2017 are summarised below:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

3 3 3 $ 5
Sales revenue 7,156,000  7,965762  7,316662  4,997201  4,935174
Met (loss)profit after income tax (571,000 (64,000)  (855,058) (2,035788) 501,048

The factors that are considerad to affect total shareholders retum (TSR are summarised balow:
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Share price at financial year and (§) 0.11 0.06 0.25 .15 017

Additional disclosures redating fo key management parsonnel

Sharaholding
The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director and other members of KMP of the

consolidated entity, including their closely ralated parlies, is sel oul below:

Balance at Recaived Balance al
the start of as part of Disposals/ the and of
the year remuneration  Additions other the year

Ordinany shares
Peter Kazacos 1,045,084 - 139,346 - 1,184,430
Anthony Hartnell 22,665,878 - 13,743,033 {1,000) 36,307,911
Sean Mulheam - - B73 - B73
Richard Ulrick * 288,282 - 40,036 (328,318) -
Janny Swain 200,000 - 67,027 - 267 027

24,099,244 - 13,980,315 (329,318) 37,760,241

' Dizposals/other - represents the holding at the time of ceaging to be a KMP within the consolidated entity and not
necessarily actual disposed.

This concludes the remuneration report, which has been avdited,

Unissued shares
Subject to sharsholder approval, 363,912 fully paid ordinary shares allocated to parties related to directors, will be issued
by 30 November 2017.

Shares under option
There were no unissued ordinary shares of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited under oplion outstanding at the date of this

report.

Shares Issued on the exercise of options
Thera were no ordinary shares of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited issued on the exercise of oplions during the year ended 30
June 2017 and up to the date of this report.

Indemnity and Insurance of officers
The compary has indemnified the directors and executives of the company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director
or executive, for which they may be held parsonally liable, except where thers is a lack of good faith,

During the financial year, the Company paid a premium In respect of a contract lo insure the direclors and executives of
the Company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001, The contract of insurance prohibits
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

Indemnity and Insurance of auditor
The company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the
company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor,
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Directors’ report - 30 June 2017

During the financial year, the company has not paid a pramium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the company
or any related entity.

Proceadings on behalf of the company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on
behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceadings to which the company i a party for the purpose of taking
rasponsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceadings.

Non-audit services

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor
are outlined In note 24 to the financial statements.

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the financial year, by the auditor {or by ancther
person or firm on the auditor's behalf), is compatitde with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by
the Corporations Act 2001,

The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements do not compromise the

extermal auditor's independance requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

e all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity
of the auditor; and

& none of the services undermine the general principles relating to audilor independence as set out in APES 110 Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Profassional and Ethical Standards Beard, including
reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the company,
acling as advocata for the company or joinlly sharing economic rigks and rewards.

Officers of the company who are former pariners of Crowe Horwath Sydney
There are no officers of the company wha are former partners of Crowe Horwath Sydney,

Auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out
immediately after this directors’ report.

Auditor
Crowe Horwath Sydney continues in office in accordance with saction 327 of the Corporations Act 2001,

Thiz report i made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298{2)a) of the Corporations Act
2001,

On bahalf of the diractors

e~

Patar Kazacos
Cirector

29 August 2017
Sydney
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Crowe Horwath. s

ABM AT 895 883 57%
Mefovrnisr Crome Hosnanndh inbsdmasbicor.sl

Audhi and Assurance Services

Lerrad 13 1 O'Cornall Strest

Sydnay NSW 2000
29 August 2017 s

Ted +61 2 G262 2155
The Board of Directors Fax +81 2 8262 2190
Allegra Orthopaedics Limited WL Croweh orwath. com.au

Level B, 18-20 Crion Road
Lane Cowve West NSW 2066

Dear Board Members

Allegra Orthopaedics Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide the following
declaration of independence 1o the Directors of Allegra Ornthopaedics Limited.

A5 lead audit partner for thie audit of the financial report of Allegra Onhopaedics Limited for the
financial year ended 30 June 2017, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, that there
have been no confraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
(i} any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Allegra Orthopasdics Limited and the entities it controlled during the
year.

Yours sincerely

."'r--l fll__,-""r ?u i 4
| rotte ff : - LI;:r-C | rF
c v
Crowe Horwath Sydney

F
. .'IE'"?'..-_ el
4 |

John Haydon
Senior Partner

Crows Horwath Sydiey & & movmbar of Crows Horwath ntarmational & Swiss vovein. Each member of Crowe Horwath i & saparate snd
incuperdent kagal antity. Lty fimmitsd by o schome approved ndar Professions Stimdards Lagkdstion ather thir for the ascts or ambsions of
rancial sevvicas Fomnsioasg.
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Ganeral Information

The financial statements cover Allegra Orthepaeadics Limited as a consolidated antity consisting of Allegra Orthopaadics
Limited and the entities it confrolled at the end of, or during, the year. The financial statements are presented in Australian
dollars, which iz Allegra Orthopaedics Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Allegra Orthopaedics Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its
ragisterad office and principal place of business |s:

Lavel 8
18-20 Orion Road
Lane Cowve West, MSW 2066

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's operations and its principal activities are included in the directors’
report, which is not part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of directors, on 29 August 2017. The
direciors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements,
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended - 30 June 2017

Consolidated
MNote 2016
$

4 5,018,556
Other income 5 a75,549
Expenses
Cost of sales and purchases of consumables (1,567 896) (2,061,663)
Corporate and administration expanses (1,737,046} (2,831,410}
Quality and research and development expenses (1,343,133)
Sales and marketing expenses (1,206,500) (1,725418)
Finance costs 7 (68,269)
Profiti(loss) before income tax expense (2,035,788)
incoma tax expensa B )
Profiti(less) after income tax axpense for the year attributable to the owners of
Allegra Orthopaedics Limited (2,035,788)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of Allegra
Orthopaedics Limited (2,035,78B)

Cents

Basic eamings per share 31 (3.20)
Diluted samings per share 31 (3.20)

Allegral

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprahensive income shouwld be ead in conjunction with the
accompanying notes




Statement of financial position As at 30 June 2017

Conszolidated
MNote 2017 2016
s $
Asszets
Current agsets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,847 647 1,154,580
Trade and other receivables 9 1,031,332 1,628,049
Inventories 10 1,776,560 1,511,486
Total current assets 4,655,539 4,204 125
MNon-current assais
Property, plant and equipment 11 567,044 477,219
Intangibles 12 154,476 158,868
Security deposits 88,123 85,585
Total non-current assats B19,643 731,672
Total assets 5,475,182 5,025,797
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 679,325 1,676,787
Borrowings 14 148 987 1,078,303
Provisions 16 45,816 41,371
Total current liabilities 875,128 2,796 461
Mon-current liabililes
Borowings 16 - 39,469
Provisions 17 44 494 39,181
Total non-current liabilities 44,484 78,650
Total liabilities 819 622 2875111
Met assats 4,555 560 2,150,686
Equity
Issued capital 18 12,348,455 10,459,629
Reserves 19 580,280 565,280
Accumulated losses (8,373,175) (8,874,223)
Total equity 4,555 560 2,150,686

The above statement of fimancial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of changes in equity For the year ended 30 June 2017

Issued Accumulated

capital Reservas lossas Total equity
Consolidated $ 3 s s
Balance at 1 July 2015 10,459,629 565,280 (6,838,435) 4,186474
Loss after incoma tax expense for the year - - (2,035788) (2,035788)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (2,035788) (2,035,788)
Balance at 30 June 2016 10,459,629 565,280 (B,874,223) 2,150,686

Izszued Accumulated

capital Resarves lossas Total equity
Consolidated $ 5 s s
Balance at 1 July 2016 10,459,629 565,280 (B,B74,223) 2,150,686
Profit after income tax expeanse for the year = = 501,048 501,048
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - . 501,048 501,048
Transactions with owners in their capacily 85 OWners:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs (note 18) 1,888,826 - - 1,888,826
Share-based paymeants - 15,000 - 15,000
Balance at 30 June 2017 12,348,455 580,280 (B, 373,175) 4,555,560

The abowe statemant of changes in equity shouwld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of changes in equity For the year ended 30 June 2017

Izzued Accumulated

capital Resarves lossas Total aquity
Consolidated $ 5 -7 s
Balance at 1 July 2015 10,459,620 565,280 (6,838435) 4,186474
Loss after incoma tax expanse for the year - - [2,035788) (2,035 788)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (2,035 788) (2,035788)
Balance at 30 June 2016 10,459,629 565,280 (8,874 223) 2,150,686

Issued Accumulated

capital Reserves losses Total equity
Consolidated -1 -1 s 5
Balance at 1 July 2016 10,459,629 565,280  (8,874,223) 2,150,688
Profit after income lax expansa for the year - - 501,048 501,048
Other comprehansive income for the year, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 501,048 501,048
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Confributions of equity, net of transaction costs (note 18) 1,888,826 - . 1,888,826
Share-based payments - 15,000 - 15,000
Balanca at 30 June 2017 12,348,455 580,280 (8,373,175) 4,555,560

The abhove statement of changes in equity showd be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of cash flows For the year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated
Note 2017 2016
s s

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 5,745,165 5,460,997
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (6,008,649) (7,104,629)

(263 484) (1,643,632)
Other revenue 45417 25,889
Interast recalved 4,896 21,355
Interest and other finance costs paid (111,282) (BB,269)
Income taxes refunded relating io research and developmant 472,080 868,535
Met cash fromf{used in) operating activiies 30 148,617 (T96,122)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment 1 (372,344) (71,537)
Payments for intangibles 12 (3.756) (15.274)
Procasds from disposal of property, plant and equipmeant = 286,000
Net cash from/{used in) investing activities {376,100) 199,189
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 18 1,928,150 -
Share |ssue fransaction costs {39,825) -
(Repayment)proceeds from debtor finance facility (178,634) 178,634
Repayment of insurance loans (21,833) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (E7,318) (210,256)
(RepaymentsVproceeds from bomowings - related party (F00,000) 5
Met cash from financing activities 920,540 668,378
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 693,057 71,445
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,154,590 1,083,145
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 1,847,647 1,154,580

The abowve staterment of cash flows shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017
Mote 1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies
have baen consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Mew or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of thase
Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of
the consolidated entity,

Any new or amandad Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory havea not been early adopted.

Basls of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB") and the Corporations Act 2001, as
appropriate for for-profit orfented entities. Thase financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (IASE").

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statemenis requires the use of certain crtical accounting estimates. i also reguires
management lo exercise its judgement in the process of applying the consolidated entity's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant fo the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.

Parent entity Information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of tha consolidated entity
anly. Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 28,

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the asseis and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Allegra Orthopaedics
Limited (‘company' or ‘parent entity’) as at 30 June 2017 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Allegra
Orthopaedics Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the ‘consolidated entity’,

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control, The consolidated entity controls an entity
when the consolidated enfity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from itz invalvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect thosae retumns through its power to direct the activities of the antity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is fransferred to the consolidated entity, They are de-consolidated from the date that control
Cceasas,

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions bebween enfities in the consclidated entity are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the consolidated entity.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest,
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference betwean the consideration
transferred and the book velue of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity
attributable to the parent.

Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the asseis including goodwill, liabilifies and
non-contralling interast in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The
consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained
together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

Operating segmeants

Operating segments are presented using the ‘management approach’, where the information presented Is an the same
basis as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operaiing Decizion Makers ["CODM'). The CODM iz responsible for the
allocation of resourcas to oparating segmants and assessing thair parformance.

Revenue recognition

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
futura economic benefits will flow to the consolidated entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the consolidated
entity’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relaiing to the sale have been resolved. The consolidated enfity bases iis estimates on historical resulls,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of
A sale is recorded when goods have been used by the customer and collectability of the related receivables iz probable.

Commissions revenue
Commission revenue derives via an agency agreement with the manufacturer of the products after outsourcing the
manufacturing operation. Commission revenue is recognized at the end of each month based on commissions eamed.

interest

Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is @ method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the inferest income over the relevant pericd using the effective interest
rale, which is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash receipls through the expeclad life of the financial assel
to the net carmying amount of the financial asset.

Other income
Other Income, such as the research and development tax offsal, is recognised when the right lo receive payment is
established.

Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the
applicable incoma tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
termporary differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expectad to be applied when
the asseis are recovered or liabilities are setiled, based on those fax rates that are enacted or substaniively enacted,
excapt for;

&  when the deferred income tax asset or liability anses from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profits; or

= when the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and
the timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reversa in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assais are recognised for deductible temporary diferences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differances and lossas.

The camying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporing date, Deferred
tax assetls recognised are reduced io the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for
the carrying amount to be recovered. Pravicusly unracognised deferred tax assels are recognised o the extent that it is
probable that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset.

Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are offset only whera there & a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assats
agains! current tax Habilities and deferred tax assels against deferred lax liabilities; and they relate lo the same laxable
authority on either the same taxable enfity or different taxable enfities which infend o settle simultaneously.

Current and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are presanted in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.

Allegral «

(&

e ridm



Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

MNote 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

An assel is classified as current when: it iz either expected to be realised or intended o be sold or consumed in the
consolidated entity’s normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporiing pericd; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged
or usad lo settle a lability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Al ather assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when: il is either expecied lo be settled in the consolidated entity's normal operating cycle;
it iz hedd primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due o be settled within 12 months afier the reporting period; or there is no
unconditional right to defer the setiement of the lability for at least 12 months after the reporling period. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depasits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid imvestments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible io known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interast method, lass any provision for impairmeant. Trade receivables are generally due for settlernent within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewead on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known io be uncollectable are written
off by reducing the camying amount directly, A provision for impairment of trade receivables is raised when there is
objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able o collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial dificulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the impairmeant allowance is the difference between the assel's camying
amaount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the criginal effective interest rate, Cash flows
relating to shor-tarm receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valua on a "first in first
out' basis, Cost consists of expenditure on direct materals and delivery, direct labour, import duties and other taxes, an
appropriate  proporiion of varable and fixed overhead expendilure based on normal operating capacity, and, where
applicable, transfers from cash flow hedging reserves in equity, Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounis received or receivable.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Proparty, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that iz directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on a straightline basis to write off the net cost of sach item of property, plant and equipment
over their expected useful lives as follows:

Flant and equipment 2-20 years
Fixtures and fittings 2-13 years
Leasshold improvemants 3-5 years

Instrument sets 5-20 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leasehold improvements and plant and equipment under lease are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.

An item of propery, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no fulure economic benefit to the
consolidated entity. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the amangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assel or assels
and the arangement conveys a right to use the assat,

A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all the
risks and benefits incidental fo the ownership of leased assets, and operating leases, under which the lessor affectively
retains substantially all such risks and benefits.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased assets, or if lower,
the presant value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated betwean the principal component of the
lease liability and the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interast on the remaining balanca of the liability,

Leased assels acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the assel's useful life or over the shorler of the assel's
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable cerainty that the consolidated entity will obtain ownership at the end
of the lsase term.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value
at the date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Indefinite life intangible
assets are not amortised and are subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are
subsaquentty measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
arising from the deracognition of intangible assels are measured as the difference batwean nat disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the intangible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually.
Changes in the expecied paftern of consumption or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisalion
method or pariod.,

Patents and frademarks
Significant cosls associated with patents and frademarks are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of their expected bensfit, being their finite life of between 1 and 20 years.

Research and developrmeant

Ressarch costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurmed. Development costs are capitalised when it is
probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility; the consolidated entity is
able to use or sell the asset; the consclidated entity has sufficient resources; and intent to complete the development and
fls costs can be measurad reliably. Costs Included in research and developmeant are extarnal direct costs and direct payrall
and related costs based on employee's time spent on the project,

Impalrment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are reviewad for impairmant whanever events or changes in circumslances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's camying amount
axceads s recoverable amount.

Recoverabla amount is the higher of an asset's fair valua less costs of disposal and value-in-use. Tha value-in-use is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or
cagh-generating unil to which the asset belongs. Assels that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to
form a cash-generating unit.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 1. Significant accounting policles [continued)

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. Due to thelr short-term nature they are measured at amoriized cost and are not
discounted, The amounts are unsecurad and are usually paid within 30 days of recagnition,

Borrowings
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They
are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Loans and borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The diference between the carrying amount and any consideration paid i recognizsed in

profit or loss.

Government grants
Grants from the governmeant are recognised at their fair value whaere there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
receivad and the consolidated entity will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Finance costs
Finance costs atfributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in
the pariod in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable the consolidated entity will be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the bast estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
If the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Eability, The increase in the provision resulting from
the passage of fime is recognised as a finance cost.

Employes banefits

Short"term emploXee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries and other employese benefits expected o be settled wholly within 12 months of the
reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftied.

Cther long-term employae benefits

Employee benefits nof expecied to be setiled within 12 months of the reporiing date are measured at the present value of
expected fulure payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and pariods of service. Expecled future paymaents are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
corporate bonds with terms fo maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows,
Liabilities for employee enfitlements which have vested in the employvee at reporting date are recognised as current
liabilities notwithstanding that they are nol expected to be settled within 12 months of reporting date as the consclidated
enfity does not have an unconditional right to defer setlement.

Defined contribution superannuation expense
Confributions fo defined contribution suparannuation plans are expensed in the perod in which they are incurred

Fair value measurement

When an assal or liability, financial or non-financial, is measurad al fair valua for recognition or disclosure purposes, the
fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction
batwaan market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaclion will take place either. in the
principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markeat,
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 1. Significant accountimg policles (continued)

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that markat participants would use when pricing the assel or liability,
assuming thay act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its
highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available o measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inpuis.

lzsued capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
fram the proceads,

Earnings par share

Basic eamings par share

Basic sarnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Allegra Orthopaedice Limited,
axcluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial yvear, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.

Difuted eamings per sharg

Diluted samings per shara adjusts the figures used in the detarmination of basic eamings per share to take into account
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the
weighted average number of shares assumed fo have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential
ordinary shares,

Goods and Services Tax ('‘GST") and other similar faxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year to enhance comparability.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2017.
The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of thesa new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations,
most relevant to the consolidated enlity, are sel out below.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Hota 1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This standard i= applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all
previous versions of AASB B and completes the project to replace IAS 38 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement'. AASE 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall
be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business modal whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial instrumeant assets
are to be clazsified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irevocable election on
initial recognition to presant gains and lossas on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in other comprahansive
income ["QCI'). For financial liabilties, the standard requires the porlion of the change in fair value that relates to the
antity’s own credit risk to be presented In OCI (unless it would create an accounting mismatch), Debt instruments which are
solely payments of principal and interest and held in business model whose objective is to collect and sell contractual cash
flows are held at fair value, with gains and losses presented in OCl. Mew simpler hedge accounfing requirements are
intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the rsk management activities of the entity. New impairment
requirements will use an 'expected credit loss' (ECL") model fo recognise an allowance. Impairment will be measured
under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces additional new disclosures. The
consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018. It is not expected to significantly impact the financial
stalements on the basis that the main financial assets recognised represent cash and cash equivalenl and trade
receivables that do not carry a significant financing component and involve a single cash flow representing the repayment
of principal, which in the case of frade receivables is the transaction price. Both assel classes will continue to be measured
at face valua. Other financial asset classes are not material to the group. Financial liabilities of the group are not impactad
as the group does not carry them at fair value.

AAE8 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard provides a
single standard for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entiby
axpects to be entitled in exchangea for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either writtan, varbal or
implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the contract; determine the transaction
price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk; allocation of the transaction price to the separate
performance obligations on a basis of ralative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service, or estimation
approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognilion of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied.
Credit risk will be presented separately as an expensa rather than adjusted to revenue. For goods, the performance
obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of the goods. For services, the performance obligation is
zatizfied when the service has been provided, typically for promises to transfer services o customers. For performance
obligations satisfied over time, an antity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue
should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be presented in an entfity's
statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract assel, or a receivable, depending on the ralationship
betweaen the entity's performance and the customer's payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required
to enable users to understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgements made in applying the guidance o
those contracts; and any assets recegnised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer. The consolidated
entity will adopt this standard from 1 Juby 2018, It is not expected to significantly impact the financial statements on the
basis that most of the group's revenue is recognised at the time of transfer of title/use which reprasents the satisfaction of
the primary performance obligation.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 1. Significant accounting policles [continued)

AASE 16 Leases

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The standard replaces AASE
117 'Leases' and for lessees will eliminate the classifications of operating leases and financa leases. Subject to exceptions,
a 'right-of-use’ azset will be capitalized in the statement of financial position, measured as the present value of the
unaveidable fulure lease payments to be made over the lease term. The excaptions relate to short-lerm leasas of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and small office fumniture) where an
accounting policy choice axists wheraby aither a 'right-of-use’ asset is recognised or lease payments are axpensad to profit
or loss as incurred. A right of use asset corresponding to the capilalised lease will also be recognised, adjusted for lease
prepayments, lease incentives received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any future restoration, removal or
dismantling costs, Straight-line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a depreciation charge for the
leased asset (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liakbility (included in finance
costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under AASBE 16 will be higher when
comparad to lease expenses under AASB 117. However, operating expense is replaced by interest expense and
depreciation in profit or loss under AASE 16. For dassification within the statement of cash flows, the lease payments will
be separaled into both a principal (financing activities) and interest (either operating or financing activities) component. For
lessor accounting, the standard does not substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases, The consolidated entity
will adopt this standard from 1 July 2019 but the impact of its adoption is yvet to be assassed by the consalidated entity,

Mote 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in
relation to assels, liabililies, contingent liabilities, revenue and axpenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates
and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, imcluding expectations of future events,
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimatas will
seldom equal the related actual results, The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assels and labiliies {refer to the respeciive notes) within the next
financial year are discussad below.

Provision for impaiment of inventories

The provision for impairment of inventories assesament requires a degree of estimation and judgement. The level of the
provision Is assessed by taking into account the recent sales axperience, the ageing of inventories and other factors that
affect imrentory obsolescence.

Estimation of usefd lives of assets

The consolidated enlity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assels. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations or some other event. The depraciation and amoriisation charge will increase where the usaful lives

are less than previously estimaled lives, or technically obsolale or non-stralegic assets that have been abandoned or sold
will be written off or written down.

Going concem
The directors have determined that the conscolidated entity ks a going concem, and these financlal statements have been
preparad on this basis.

Hote 3. Operating segments

Identification of operating segments

The consolidaled entity is organised in two operating segments based on an orthopaedics division and an innovation
division. These operating segments are based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors
(who are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers ("CODM')) in assessing performance and in determining the
allocation of resources. Thera is no aggregation of operating segments,

The CODM reviews EBITDA (eamings before interest, tax, deprecialion and amorisation). The accounting policies
adopted for intemal reporting to the CODM are consistent with those adopted in the financial statements. For the
innovation division, net cash flow information are reported (o the CODM as a measure of EBITDA.

Tha information reported to the CODM is on a monthly basis.

T
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 3. Operating segments [continued)

Orthopaedics  Innovation
divigion divizgion Total
Consolidated - 2016 & 3 3
Revenue
Sale of goods 4,343 656 - 4,343 656
Commission revenus 653,545 - 653,545
Total sales revenue 4 997 201 - 4,997 201
Governmant grants - 470,439 470,439
Other income 25,889 - 25,889
Research and development tax offset 315,849 163,372 479,221
Inlerest revenue 21,355 - 21,355
Total revenue 5,360, 294 633,811 5,994 105
EBITDA {1.637.366) 163,272 (1,474,024}
Depreciation and amortisation (514,780} - (514,780)
Imterast revenue 21,355 - 21,355
Finance costs (6E,269) - (6B, 269)
Profiti{loss) before Income fax expense (2,198,080} 163,272 (2,035,788)
Income tax expense -
Loss after income tax expense (2,035,788)
The cash balance as at 30 June 2017 for the Orthopaedics Division was $839 467 (2016: $348,095).
The cash balance as at 30 June 2017 for the Innovation Division was $1,008,180 (2016: $770.485).
Hote 4. Revenus
Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Sales revenue
Sale of goods 4,262 478 4,343 656
Commissions revenue 672,658 653,545
4,935,174 4,997 201
Other revenue
Interast 8,042 21,356
Revenue 4,943,216 5,018,556
Mote 5. Other Incomea
Consolidated
2017 2016
1 1
Governmeant grants 770,495 470,438
Other income 46417 25,889
Research and development tax offset 261,952 473,221
Othar Income 1,078 8a4 975 549
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 6. Restructuring costs

Dwring the prior financial year the consolidated entity oulsourced ts activities associated with the manufacture of its highly
acclaimed Active Knee product range to Signature Orthopaedics Pty Ltd ('Signature') which is an Australian based
company. To facilitate the outsourcing, relevant equipment was sold to Signature and some personnel were transferred.

Mo restructuring costs were incurred during the current year,

As a result of cutsourcing the manufacturing operalions, the consolidated entity incurred the following restructuring costs:

Consolidated
2017 2016
§ §
Redundancy costs - 108,291
MNet loss on inventory write-down - 148,654
Cost of zales and purchases of consumables - materials - 231,081
Costl of sales and purchases of consumables - repairs and maintenance - 19,373
Met loss on sale of plant and eguipment - 302613
Total restructuring costs - 810,992
Mote 7. Expenses
Consolidated
2017 2016
1 1
Profit!(loss) before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
Plant and equipmeant 10,206 o, 700
Fixtures and fittings 65,128 160 490
Leasehold improvements 4,227 42,096
Instrument sats 202 958 212,080
Total depreciation 282 519 490,346
Ameontisation
Website - 4,609
Patents and trademarks 8,148 18,825
Total amortisation 8,148 24 434
Total depreciation and amorisation 250,667 514,780
Impaimaent
Inventories 74,811 244 348
Finance costs
Interast and finance charges paid/payable 111,292 68,269
Minimum lease paymenis - operating lease expense 141,675 308,037
Met foreign exchange loss 18,708 36,207
Deafined contribution superannualion expense 117,621 177,902
Employae benefits expense excluding superannuation 1,586,622 2,130,404

Allegral ;:','

e e

(®



Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Note B. Income fax expanse

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ 5

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expanse and tax at the statutory rate
Profit/{loss) before income tax expense 501,048  (2,035,788)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 27.5% (2016: 30%) 137,788 (610,736)
Tax effect amounts which are not deductibla/{taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Entertainment expenses - 66

Concessional research and development expenditure treatrmant 224 351 345,839

Research and development tax incentive (76.404)  (141,624)

=hare based paymeant 4,125 -

289,860 (406,455)
Currant year temporary differences and tax losses nol recognised (268,895) 427,139
Share raising cost recognised directly in equity (21,165) (20,684)
Income tax expense - -
Consolidated
2017 2016
3 1

Tax losses not recognised
Unused tax lozses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 2,553,167 3,677 2B
Potential tax benefit @ 27.5% (2016: 30%) 702121 1,103,187

The above potential tax benafit for tax losses has not bean recognised in the statement of financlal position. These tax
losses can only be utilised against future taxable income if the continuity of ownership test is passed, or failing that, the
same business test iz passed.

Mate 9. Current assets - frads and other recelvables

Consolidated
2017 2016

1 1
Trade receivables 562,368 896,588
Other receivables 35,955 82,078
Fesearch and development tax receivable 277,835 487 963

313,790 570,039
Prapayments 165,174 161,022

1,031,332 1,628,049

Impairment of recaivables
The consolidated entity has recognised a provision $nil (2016: $nil) in corporate and administration axpeanses In profit or
loss, in respect of impairment of receivables for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Past due but notimpaired
Customars with balances past dua but without provision for impairment of receivables amount to $268 888 as at 30 June

2017 ($622,385 as at 30 June 2016),
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 11. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out
below:

Flant and Fixtures and Leasehold®  Instrument

equipment fittings improvements selis ™ Total
Consolidated £ £ 3 3 5
Balance at 1 July 2015 711,718 274,638 42,096 498,524 1,526,974
Additions 2219 3,586 10,000 85,732 81,537
Disposals (628,2T5) (12,671} - - (640,948)
Depreciation expense (75,700) (160,490} (42,086) (212,060} (490,346)
Balance at 30 June 2016 8,860 105,063 10,000 352,196 477,219
Additlons 71,316 7,935 3,230 289 BE3 372 344
Depreciation expanse {10,208) (65,128) (4,227 (202,958) (282,518)
Balance at 30 June 2017 71,070 47,870 9,003 439,101 567,044

*  The net book value of leasehold improvements disposed of was $nil (cost of $434 217 and accumulated depreciation
of $434 217).

*  Includes net book value of finance leasad assets of $34 382 (2016: $128,021) (cost $112 524 (2016: $205,033),
accumulated depreciation: $78,142 (2016: $77.012)).

. plant and equipment secured under finance leases
Refer to note 26 for further information on property, plant and equipment secured under finance leases.

Mote 12. Non-current assets - Intangibles

Consolidated
2017 2016

s s
Patents and tradamarks - at cost 669,220 BE5 464
Less: Accumulatad amortisation (514,744} (506,596)

154,476 158,868
Reconcillations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the cumrent and previous financial year are set out
below:

Patents and
trademarks Website Total

Consolidated $ 5 i
Balanca at 1 July 2015 219 552 18,751 238,303
Additions 12,037 3237 15,274
Write off of aszals (52 898) (17,279) [T0.275)
Amarisation expense (19,825) (4,6089) {24,434)
Balance at 30 June 2016 158,868 - 158,868
Additions 3,756 - 3,756
Amortisation expensea (8,148) - (8,148)
Balance at 30 June 2017 154 476 - 154 476
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 16. Non-current liabilitfies - borrowings | continued)

Total secured abilites
The total sacured liabilities (currant and non-current) are as follows:
Consolidated
2017 2016
s s
Lease liability 39,467 106,785
Related party loans - TO0,000
Debtor finance facility - 178,634
38,467 985,419
The total non-secured liabilities include insurance loans by $110,520 (2016; $132,353).
Assets pledged as security
The assets pledged relates o the loan with the related party which is secured against a floating charge over the net assets
of the business,
The carrying amounis of assels pledged as security for current and non-curmant borrowings are:
Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Plant and equipment 34,382 128,021
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 16. Mon-currant llabilities - borrowings (continued)

Financing
Unrestricted access was available at the reporting date to the following lines of credit;

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Total facilities
Bank overdraft 500,000 -
Related parly loans = 1,000,000
Lease liability 39,467 106,785
Business card facility 15,000 15,000
Debtor finance facility - 1,500,000
Insurance loans 110,520 132 353

BB4,987 2,754,138

Used at the reporting date

Bank overdraft - -
Related party loans - 700,000
Lease liability 39,467 108,785
Business card facility - -
Debtor finance facility 178,634

Insurance loans 110,520 132 353
149 987 1,117,772

Unuszed at the reporting date
Bank overdraft 500,000 -
Related party loans - 200,000
Lease liability - -
Business card facility 15,000 15,000
Debtor finance facility =

1,321,366
Insurance loans z

515,000 1,636,366

During the period, the loan from Robinwood Investments Pty Limited (related party) amounting to $700,000 was repaid.
During the period, the agreement for the debtor finance facility, was terminated,

Note 17. Non-current Habilities - provisions

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Employee banefits 34,494 29,181
Lease make-good 10,000 10,000
44 494 39,181

Lease mak.
The provision represents the prasent value of the astimated costs to make good the premises leased by the consolidated
anlity at the end of the respective laase terms,
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 18. Equity - Issued capital

Consolidated
2017 2016 2017 2016

Shares Shares $ $
Ordirary shares - fully paid 82528474 63,601,248 12,348455 10459629
Movements in ordfnary share capital
Detalls Date Shares Izzue price 5
Balance 1 July 2015 63,501,248 10,459,629
Shares issued 31 July 2016 100,000 $0.00 -
Balance 30 June 2016 63,601 248 10,459,629
Shares issued to employeas 20 Seplember 2018 100,000 $0.00 -
Shares issued 13 December 2016 9,438 957 $0.08 785,117
Shares issued 13 April 2017 9. 388,269 3013 1,173,534
Share issue transaction costs - $0.00 (39,825)
Balance 30 June 2017 B2,528.474 12,348,455

* Subject to shareholder approval, 363,912 fully paid ordinary shares allocated to parties related to directors, will be issued
by 30 November 2017.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares entitle the holder lo participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the company in
proportion o the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the
company does not have a limited amount of authorized capital.

On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each
share shall hava one vote,

Share buy-back
Thera |5 no current on-market share buy-back,

Capital risk management

The consolidated entity's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn, so
that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

Capital is regarded as total aquity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus nat debt. Net debt is calculated
as lotal borrowings less cash and cash equivalants,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the consolidated entity may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce dabt.

The consolidated entity would look to raise capital when an opporunity to invest in a business or company was 6een as
value adding relalive to the current parent entity’s share price at the time of the investment. The conzclidated endity is not
activaly pursulng additional investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing businesses in
order fo maximise synergies.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

MNote 19. Equity - reserves

Consolidated
2017 2016
3 3
Share-based payments reserve 580,280 565,280

Share-based payments reserve
The reserve is used to recognise the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their
remunaration, and other pariies as part of their compensation for services.

Movements in resenes
Movements in aach class of reserva during the currant and previous financial year are sal oul balow:

Share-based

paymeants Total

Consolidated $ $
Balance at 1 July 2015 565,280 565,280
Balance at 30 June 2016 565,280 065,280
Share-based paymenis 15,000 15,000
Balance at 30 Juna 2017 580,280 580,280

MNote 20. Equity - dividends

Dividerds
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.

Franking cradits

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Franking credits available for subsequent financial years based on a tax rate of 30% 320,477 320,477

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:
» franking credits that will arfise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax at the reporting date

+ franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date
« franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date

Mote M. Financlal instruments

Financial risk management objectives

The consolidated entity’s activities expose it o a vardety of financial risks: market risk, credit nsk and liquidity risk. The
consolidated entity's overall sk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimisa potential adverse effects on the financial parformance of the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity uses
different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the
case of interest rate, foreign exchange and other price risks and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Risk management is carried out by senior finance executives (finance') under policies approved by the Board of Directors
(the Board'), These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the consolidated entity and
appropriate procedures, controls and risk limits. Finance identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks within the
consolidated entity's oparating units. Finance reports to the Board on a monthly basis,
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017
Mote 21. Financhal instruments {continmued)

Markafl risk

Formeign cumency risk
The consolidated eniity is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk.

Price nsk
The consolidated antity is not exposed to any significant price risk.

Interest rate risk

The consolidated entity’s main intarest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings and finance leases. Those issued at
variable rates expose the consolidated entity to interest rate risk. Those issued at fixed rates expose the consolidated
entity to fair value interest rate risk.

For the consolidated entity the bank, finance lease and other loans outstanding, totalling $149,987 (2016: 1,117, 772), are
principal and interest payment loans. Minimum principal repaymants of $149,987 (2016: $199,662) are due during the year
ending 30 June 2018,

The consolidated antity is nol exposad o any significant interest rate risk.

Credlt risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
consolidated entity. The consolidated entity has a strict code of credit, including oblaining agency credit information,
confirming references and selting appropriate cradit limits. The consolidated entity obtains guarantees where appropriate
to miligate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporling date fo recognised financial assels is the
carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assels, as disclosed in the statement of financial position
and notes to the financial statements. The consclidated entity does not hold any collateral.

Liquidity risk
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the consolidated endity to maintain sufficient liguid assets (mainly cash and cash
equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they bacome due and payabla.

The congolidated entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by
continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Financing arangamants
Unused borrowing facilities at the reporting date:
Consolldated
2017 2016
$ L

Bank overdraft 500,000 -
Related party loans ; 300,000
Business card facility 15,000 15,000
Debtor finance facility - 1,321,366

515,000 1,636,366
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 21. Financial instruments [continued)

Remaining contractual matunties

The following tables detail the consolidated entity's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date an which
the financial liabilities are required to be paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows disclosed as
remaining contractual maturities and therefore these tolals may differ from thelr carrying amount in the statement of

financial position.

Waighted Ramaining
average Bebween 1 Bebween 2 contractual
interest rate 1 wearorless and 2years and Syears Owver 5years  malurities
Consolidated - 2017 % 5 5 s 5 5
HNon-derivatives
MNon-interest
Trade payables - 399,124 - - - 399 124
Interast-bearing - fxed rate
Lease liability 13.03% 42 273 - - - 42273
Insurance funding agresment 3.80% 110,520 - - - 110,520
Total non-denvaiives 651,917 - - - 551,917
Waighted Ramaining
average Betweean 1 Bebtweaen 2 contractual
interest rate 1 yearorless and 2years and5years OverSyears maturities
Con olidated - 2016 % $ $ $ $ $
Hon- erivatives
Non- nterest bea ng
Trade payables - B98. 812 - - - 598,912
Inter st-bearng - fixed rate
Debtor finance facility 8.50% 186,226 - - - 186,226
Related party loans 13.00% 745,500 - - - 745,500
Lease lability 13.03% 77418 42273 - - 119,691
Insurance funding agreement 3.55% 132,353 - - - 132,353
Total non-dernvaiives 1,740,409 42273 . - - 1,782,682

The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expacted to oceur significantly earlier than contractually disclosed

above,

Mote 22, Falr value measuremeant

Fair alue hisrarc

There are no amounts either measured or disclosed at fair value in these financial statements.

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities within the statement of financial posilion represent a
reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017
Mote 23. Key management personnel disclosures

Compensation
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the consolidated

entity is set out below:

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 380,013 436,777
Post-employmant banafits 23,081 26 468
Long<erm benefils 3,868 649

406,963 463,804

Note 24. Remuneration of auditors

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Crowe Horwath Sydney, tha
auditor of the company:

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Audit services - Crowe Horwath 5ydney (2016: PricewaterhouseCoopers)
Audit or review of the financial statements 55,000 108,740

Other services - Crowe Horwath Sydney (2018: PricewaterhouseCoopers)
Tax compliance services - 12,600
Tax consulting and advice - R&D 30,000

- 42,500

55,000 151,240

Mote 25. Contingent llabilities
The consolidated entity had no contingent liabilties at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016,

The consolidated entity has performance guarantee totalling 598,123 at 30 June 2017 (2016: $95,586) in relation to rental
commitments.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 26. Commitments

Consolidated
2017 2016
s s
L ease commitments - operating
Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
Within one year 33,517 31,384
One to five years 5,586 36,615
33,103 67,999

Lease commilmaents - finance
Committed at the reporiing date and recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one yaar 42 271 77,418
One to five years

- 42,273
Total commitment 42,271 119,691
Less: Futura finance charges (2,804) (12,906)
Met commitment recognised as liabilities 39,467 106,785
Reprasenting:
Lease liability - current (note 14) 39,467 67,316
Lease liability - non-current (note 16) - 38 469
39,467 106,785

Operating leaze commitments includes contracted amounts for office and plant and equipment under mon-cancellable

operating leases expinng within three to five years with, in some cases, options to extend, The leases have various
ezcalation clauses. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

Finance lease commitments includes contracted amounts for various plant and equipment with a carrying value of $34,382
(2016: $128,021) under finance leases expiring within one to five years. Under the terms of the |eases, the consolidated
antity has the oplion to acquire the leased assels for predetermined residual values on the expiry of the leases.

Mota 27. Related party transactions

Farant entity
Allegra Orthopaedics Limited is the parent entity.

Subsidiades
Interasts in subsidiares are set out in note 29,

Key managamant parsonmne

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 23 and the remuneration report included in the
directors’ reporl.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017
Mote 27. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with related parties
The following transactions ocourred with related paries:

Consolidated
2017 2016
-1 5
Payment for goods and services:
Fees paid to Law Corporation (director related entity of Peter Kazacos) - 14,750
Fees paid and payable to Alanaskovic Hartnell (a legal firm in which Anthony Hartnell
is @ partner) 13,152 52111
Surgeon advisory fees pald to Dr Nicholas Harinell (related to Anthony Hartnell —
diractor) 5,000 -
Paymant for other expanses:
Interast and fees paid on loan to Robinwood Investments Pty Ltd 86 903 -

Receivabie from and payable to related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

Consolidated
2017 2016
1 3
Currant payables:
Surgeon advisory fees payable to Dr Nicholas Harinell (related to Anthony Hartnell - director) 5,000 -
Loans tovifrom related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to loans with related parties:
Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Current bormowings:
Loan from Robinwood Investments Py Lid - 700,000
Terms and conditions
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions,
Mote 28. Parent entity Information
Sel out below s the supplementary information about the parent entity.
Staternent of profit or loss and other comprahensive income
Parent
2017 2016
5 $
Profit/(loss) after incoma tax 497 048  (2,035,788)
Tatal comprehensive income 497,048  (2,035,788)
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Mote 28. Parent entlty Information (continued)

Statement of fnancial position
Parent
2017 2016
$ $

Total currant assets 4 TFT 63T 4416223
Tatal assets 5,550 T92 5,101 405
Total currant liabilities B75, 540 2,792 871
Total labilities 920,034 2871521
Equity

Issued capital 12,348,455 10,459,620

Shara-based paymeants resarve 580, 280 565, 280

Accumulated losses (8,297.977) (8,795,025)
Total aquity 4,630,758 2,229 884

Fabiities

The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016.

The parent has performance guarantee fotalling $98.123 at 30 Jume 2017 (2016: $95,586) in relation to rental
commitments.

Capital commitmants - Proparty, plant and aquipmeant
The parent entity had no capital commitments for property, plant and equipment at as 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 1,

except for the following:

» Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parant entity.

* Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised as other income by the parent entity and its receipt may be an
indicator of an impairment of the invesimeant

Mote 29. Interests In subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1:

Ownership interest
Principal place of business / 2017 2016
MName Country of incorporation Yo Yo
Allegra Orthopaedics Holdings Pty Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Advanced Surgical Design & Manufacture (LK)
Limited * United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%

*  This entity i dormant.
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Notes to the financial statements - 30 June 2017

Hote 30. Reconcillation of profit/{loss) after income tax to net cash fromfjused In) operating activities

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
Profitf{loss) after income tax axpense for the year 501,048  (2,035,788)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 290,667 514,780
Met loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 302613
Share-based paymenis 15,000 -
Interest received - non-cash {3,146) -
Governmant grants non-cash (TT0.455) -
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decreasa/(increase) in trade and other recaivables 381,850 (80,302)
Decreasa/(increase) in inventories (265,074) i
Decraase in prepayments 0,848 47,707
Decrease in income taxes refunded relating to research and developmant 210,128 380,558
Decrease in trade and other payables (226,967) (445,051)
Increase/{dacrease) in othar provisions 9,758 (328 B72)
Met cash from/{used in) oparating activities 148,617 (T96,122)
MNota 31. Earnings per share
Consolidated
2017 2018
s s
Profitf{loss) after income tax attributable to the owners of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited 501,048  (2,035,788)
Humbear Humber
Woeightad average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic eamings per shara 70,883,069 63,593,051
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted eamings per share 70,883,069 63,593,051
Cants Cents
Basic earnings per share o.M (3.20)
Diluted eamings per share 0.71 (3.20)

MNote 32 Events after the reporting period

Mo matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2017 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
consalidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future

fimancial years.
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Directors’ declaration - 30 June 2017
In the directors' opinion:

# the attachaed financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, tha
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporling requiremants;

s the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
Intermaticnal Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements;

= the attached financial slatements and notes give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as
at 30 June 2017 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

= there are reasonable grounds fo believe that the company will be able fo pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 285(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On bahalf of the directors

Lledy —~

Petar Kazacos
Director

289 August 2017
Sydney
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

COpinion

We have audited the financial report of Allegra Orthopaedics Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (the Consolidated entity), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30
June 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes

in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Consolidated entity is in accordance with the
Corporalions Act 2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated enfity's financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of
its financial performance for the year then ended; and

(b} complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporalions Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audifor’s Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our repont. We are independent of the Consolidated entity in accordance with the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 20071 and the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountanis (the Code) that are relevant 1o our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Malters

Key audit matters are those mafiers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial repor for the current period. These matters were addressad in the context of
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Cromva Honasih Sydnay i 8 mamber of Cooven Horwalh intemationa), 8 Sedis vansin. Each member of Crows Honealfs 5 a sopserate and
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Crowe Horwath.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to Mote 1 and Mote 4

The sales of goods are recognised as revenue We performed the following key procedures:

when the goods have been usad or received by Cbtained an understanding of the key

the customer. As revenue from the sale of goods controls management has in place to ensure
iz a significant balance in the financial report, and appropriate recognition of revenue for the
impacts the reporied profit for the year, we have sale of goods, and tested this process fora
focused particular audit attention on revenue sample of sales throughout the year.
recognition. Tested a sample of invoices raised in the

months of June 2017 and July 2017 to ensure
that the revenue was recognised in the
correct peniod.

Assessed the movement of individual
revenue line items 1o ensure that the
movements are reasonable and within our
expectations when compared 1o movements
in inventory.

Chther Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Consolidated entity’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but
does not include the financial report and our auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is 1o read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

If, baszed on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, IFRS and the Corporafions Act
2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Consolidated entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Consolidated entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.




Crowe Horwath.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Cwur cbjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial repornt as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance iz a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it existz. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our rezsponsibilities for the audit of the financial repon is located at the Auditing

and Assurance Standards Board websiie at: hilpJwww auasb gov.auauditors files/arg pdf - This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Bemuneration Repont included in pages 5 to 10 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Allegra Orthopasdics Limited, for the year ended 30 June
2017, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 .

Responsibilities
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Eemuneration Beport in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001, Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bemuneration Beport, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
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John Haydon
Senior Parner

Dated 29 August 2017
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Shareholder information - 30 June 2017

The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 17 July 2017.

Distribution of equitable securities
Analysis of number of equitable security holders by size of holding:

HNumber
of holders
of ordinary

shares
1 to 1,000 19
1,001 to 5,000 129
5,001 to 10,000 67
10,001 to 100,000 120
100,001 and over 38
374
Holding less than a marketable parcel 41
Equity security holders
Twenty largest guoted equity security hoiders
The names of the twenty largast security holders of quoted equity securilies are listed below:
Ordinary shares
% of total
shares
Number held issued
ROBINWOOD INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 34,841 615 42 34
NETWEALTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 7,169,679 8.69
WELSH SUPERANNUATION PTY LIMITED 6,600,000 8.00
CRYPTYCH PTY LTD 5,981,163 T.25
MARIE CAROLL & DAWSON CAROLL 5,636,285 6.83
MERGIN INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 2,151,857 2.61
SANPEREZ PTY LTD 1,370,485 1.66
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 1,199, 444 1.45
MR NICHOLAS HARTNELL 1,134,090 1.37
MR KENNETH CAMPBELL 1,000,000 1.21
MR THOMAS JAMES CARROLL 1,000,000 1.21
DR ANDREW WILLIAM LEICESTER & MRS SKYE CHRISTINE LEICESTER 976,456 1.18
DESTIN PTY LIMITED 946,470 1.15
MISTY HILLS NOMINEES PTY LTD 892,857 1.08
DR ANDREW WILLIAM LEICESTER & MRS SKYE CHRISTINE LEICESTER 605,603 0.73
DESMOND J BOKOR PTY LIMITED 210,000 0.62
PETER WELSH 473,685 0.57
MS NICOLE FAITH ROGER 403,334 0.48
CRYPTYCH PTY LTD 355,000 0.43
MR RICHARD ULRICK & MRS WENDY ULRICK 328 318 0.40
73,676,241 8927

Unguoted equity securities
There are no unquoted equity secunties.
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Shareholder information - 30 June 2017

Substantial holders
Substantial holders in the company are set out below:

Ordinary shares
% of total

shares

Mumber held issued
ROBINWOOD INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 36,075,705 4371
METWEALTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 7,169,579 868
WELSH SUPERANMUATION PTY LIMITED and PETER WELSH 7,123,132 B8.62
CRYPTYCH PTY LTD and GREGORY JAMES ROGER 6,338,163 768
MARIE CAROLL & DAWSON CAROLL 5,636,285 B.83

The above is the information disclosed In the most recent substantial holding notices given to the company.

Voting rights
The voting rights attached to ordinary shares are set out below:

Ordinary shares
On a show of hands every member presant at 8 meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each
ghare shall have one vole.

There are no other classes of aquity securities.
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